
 
Agenda compiled by: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
 

 
Helen Gray 
247 4355 

 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

A 

 

 

 

PLANS PANEL (CITY CENTRE) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 

 
Thursday, 8th March, 2012 at 12.30 pm 

 
PLEASE NOTE THE CHANGE TO THE START TIME 

 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
 

B Selby (Chair) 
 
G Driver 
 
S Hamilton 
 
J Jarosz 
 
J McKenna 
 
E Nash 
 

M Hamilton 
 
C Campbell 
 

G Latty 
 
A Castle 
 

  
 

A Blackburn 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

 
 
 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information 
Rules (in the event of an Appeal the press and 
public will be excluded) 
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting) 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
 
 

 



 

C 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes) 
 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal/prejudicial interests for the 
purpose of Section 81(3) of the Local Government 
Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
 

 

5     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES 
 
To approve the minutes of the previous meeting 
held on 16th February 2012 as a correct record 
 
(Copy attached) 
 

3 - 6 

7   
 

All Wards;  LOCAL  DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK (LDF) 
CORE STRATEGY PUBLICATION DOCUMENT 
 
To consider the report of the Director of City 
Development informing the Panel of the broad 
scope and content of the LDF Core Strategy 
document  
 
(Report attached) 
 

7 - 26 



 

D 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

8   
 

  PRE-APPLICATION PRESENTATION - 
FORMATION OF STUDENT FLATS (501 BEDS 
IN 77 CLUSTERS) AT 27 BURLEY ROAD, 
WOODHOUSE (PRE-APP/11/00577) 
 
To consider the report of the Chief Planning Officer 
on proposals to create student accommodation on 
the site of the former Yorkshire Television Studio at 
27 Burley Road, Woodhouse. 
 
This is a pre-application presentation and no 
formal decision on the development will be taken, 
however it is an opportunity for Panel Members to 
ask questions, raise issues, seek clarification and 
comment on the proposals at this stage. There is 
no opportunity for public speaking about the 
proposals outlined in the presentation 
 
(Report attached) 
 

27 - 
32 

9   
 

City and 
Hunslet; 

 FIRST WHITE CLOTH HALL 
 
To consider the report of the Chief Planning Officer 
updating the Panel on the progress made in 
restoring the First White Cloth Hall 
 
(Report attached) 
 

33 - 
36 

10   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
To note the dates of future meetings as: 
Thursday 15th March 2012 at 1.30pm, Thursday 
12th April 2012 at 1:30 pm, Thursday 10th May 
2012 and Thursday 7th June 2012 
 

 

 



www.leeds.gov.uk General enquiries : 0113 222 4444 

 Chief Executive’s Department 
 Governance Services 
 4th Floor West 
 Civic Hall 
 Leeds LS1 1UR 
 
 Contact: Helen Gray 
 Tel: 0113 247 4355  
                                Fax: 0113 395 1599  
                                helen.gray@leeds.gov.uk 

 Your reference:  
 Our reference: ccpp/sitevisit/ 
  29 February  2012 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
PLANS PANEL CITY CENTRE – THURSDAY 8TH MARCH 2012 AT 12:30 PM  
 
Prior to the meeting on Thursday 8th March 2012 there will be one site visit in respect of the 
following: 
 
10:15 am 
(approx) 

Proposals for a student housing development at 27 Burley Road 
(Pre-application 11/00577) 

  
  
 
Panel Members are requested to meet in the Civic Hall ante-chamber for 9.55am, in 
readiness for a 10.00 am start from the Civic Hall. Please could you let Daljit Singh know (24 
78010) if you will be attending the site visits.  
 
PLEASE NOTE : The formal Panel meeting will commence at 12:30 pm on this occasion 
 

Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Helen Gray 
Governance Services 
 
 

To: 
Plans Panel City Centre Members 
and appropriate Ward Members 
 

Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 8th March, 2012 

 

Plans Panel (City Centre) 
 

Thursday, 16th February, 2012 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor B Selby in the Chair 

 Councillors G Driver, J Jarosz, J McKenna, 
E Nash, A Castle, A Blackburn, C Fox and 
C Macniven 

 
52 Declarations of Interest  

The following Members declared personal/prejudicial interests for the purpose 
of Section 81(3) of the Local Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of 
the Members Code of Conduct: 

 
Councillor A Castle – Application 11/04825/FU for Student Flats at  20-28 
Hyde Terrace, Woodhouse – declared a personal interest as a member of 
Leeds Civic Trust, as the Civic Trust had commented on the scheme (minute 
56 refers)  
 
Councillor C Fox – Application 11/04825/FU for Student Flats at  20-28 Hyde 
Terrace, Woodhouse – declared a personal interest as his son attends the 
University of Leeds, although it was noted that this was not strictly an interest 
for the purposes of the Members Register of Interests (minute 56 refers)  

 
53 Apologies for Absence  

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Campbell, M Hamilton 
and S Hamilton. The Panel welcomed Councillors Fox and Macniven as 
substitutes for Councillors G Latty and S Hamilton respectively 

 
54 Minutes  

Minute 50 former Yorkshire Chemicals site – the Panel noted a request that a 
concern expressed over the maisonette style of the proposed house design 
be included 
RESOLVED – That, subject to the inclusion of the amendment detailed 
above, the minutes of the meeting held 22nd December 2011 be agreed as a 
correct record 

 
55 Matters Arising  

Leeds Core Strategy – the Head of Planning Services reported the Core 
Strategy document had been accepted by Executive Board on 10th February 
2012 and would be placed on deposit for representations for a 6 week period 
prior to being presented to Council and submission to the Secretary of State. 
The implications for the city centre area would be presented to the next Panel 
meeting. It was noted that the Core Strategy now had status as a material 
planning consideration and Members discussed the need for clarity on 
relevant legislation when considering planning applications. 
Regional Spatial Strategy The Head of Planning Services confirmed that the 
RSS had not yet been abolished but would be replaced by the Core Strategy 
in due course 

Agenda Item 6

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 8th March, 2012 

 

Localism Act - It was reported that the Localism Act had been enacted in part, 
but that the Neighbourhood Planning proposals would require secondary 
legislation which had not yet been implemented. Leeds awaited news of 
whether the 4 pilot areas had received grants to fund the schemes. 

 
56 Application 11/04825/FU - 20 - 28 Hyde Terrace, Leeds LS2 9LN  

Further to minute 32 of the meeting held 27th October 2011 when the Panel 
received a pre-application presentation on early proposals for a student flat 
development with associated cycle storage and landscaping at 20-28 Hyde 
Terrace Leeds LS2, the Chief Planning Officer submitted a report on the 
application now received.  

 
The report also set out the developers’ response to comments made by Panel 
at the October meeting relating to car parking, the design and dimensions of 
the new wings, the cluster flats and the relationship of the wings with the main 
building. 

 
Plans and photographs of the site were displayed at the meeting along with 
architects’ drawings of the proposals. Members had visited the site prior to the 
meeting. Officers drew attention to the following matters: 

- The proposed treatment to the side street between Nos. 30 and 28 which 
included footpath resurfacing and widening with “no waiting” Traffic 
Regulation Orders to be implemented on the eastern side of the street 

- The design of the 27 space basement cycle store would be conditioned 
- Slides showing levels and cross sections were displayed to show that the 

basement flats had sufficient outlook and light  
- The render to the gable end of No. 20 to be removed and three small 

windows established 
- Eastern new build wing – red brick construction with copper cladding with 

larger glazed areas to the main windows located to overlook the internal 
courtyard space  

- Western new build wing – red brick construction designed to be in keeping 
with the adjacent listed terraces 

 
Officers stated that two additional conditions were required as follows:  

• Details of the bin storage location of and level of recycling 

• Details of the plant equipment to be introduced to the basement to ensure this 
does not exceed normal decibel levels 

 
The Panel went on to consider the following matters: 

- Design and height of the western extension, particularly the gable end. There 
was discussion on the appearance of this wing on the streetscene which 
appeared to be “offset” from the main building. Members considered that its 
appearance on the streetscene would be improved if it was aligned with the 
gable of the main building. 

- Members noted the response that the new gable design was similar to the 
existing and that this approach provided definition between the old and the 
new build; ensuring the new wing remained subservient to the main building 
which retained its dominance in the scheme. Furthermore, a single roof line 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 8th March, 2012 

 

would present too much massing on the street and the offset also allowed for 
the footpath to be widened. 

 
- Impact of the design and implementation of new railings around the front 

garden on the Conservation Area. Members noted that the developer was 
keen to secure the garden area but commented that the railings should be 
Victorian period style. Officers responded that the railing design could be 
addressed through the general hard and soft landscaping condition 

 
- Nil provision of car parking. Members discussed the “no car” requirement; 

noting that student occupancy would incur less traffic impact than the previous 
use of the main building or sale/lease of the flats on the open market. The 
response that the associated Travel Plan would refer to but could not 
condition the “no car” requirement was noted. The developer would seek to 
enforce this through tenancy agreements with the student residents.  

 
- Trees. Members noted that both the sycamore and laburnum tree lay outside 

of the development.  
 

Members broadly supported the scheme and commended the proposals as 
being sympathetic to the existing building and the surrounding Conservation 
Area 
RESOLVED – That the application be granted subject to the specified 
conditions contained within the submitted report (and any others which might 
be considered appropriate) plus additional conditions highlighted at the 
meeting to cover: 

• Details of the bin storage location of and level of recycling 

• Details of the plant equipment to be introduced to the basement to ensure this 
does not exceed normal decibel levels 

• Details of the railings to be submitted within the hard/soft landscaping 
proposals 

 
57 Date and time of next meeting  

RESOLVED – To note the following arrangements: 

• Thursday 8th March 2012 at 1.30 pm (additional meeting) 

• Thursday 15th March 2012 at 1.30 pm 
 
 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Report of Director of City Development

Report to City Centre Plans Panel 

Date: 8th March 2012 

Subject: LDF Core Strategy Publication Document

Are specific electoral Wards affected?   Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
All

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Report author:  David Feeney 

Tel:  2474539 

Summary of main issues

1. Following consideration by Executive Board on 10th February, the City Council’s Local
Development Framework (Publication Draft) has been approved for public consultation.
The consultation period is 28th February – 12th April (5:00pm) and the purpose of this
report is to make Area Committees aware of the consultation and the broad scope and
content of the document.  The Core Strategy document (and background material) is 
available via the City Council’s web site, together with a copy of the representations 
form.

2. In aspiring to be the ‘best city in the UK’, the Core Strategy takes forward the spatial
and land use elements of this ambition, as part of an overall strategy.  As a basis to
address these priorities and in order to provide a strategic framework for the 
preparation of the Site Allocations Development Plan Document (DPD) and 
Neighbourhood Plans, there is some urgency to take the Core Strategy forward. 

3. Central to the overall approach of the Core Strategy, is the desire to plan for the homes
and jobs the District needs in a sustainable manner.  Integral therefore to the strategy, 
is the need to respect local character, distinctiveness and to achieve environmental 
management requirements, in support of regeneration and growth. 

4. The Core Strategy is presented through a series of Spatial and detailed Policies, which
are summarised in this covering report and set out in more detail in the consultation
material and supporting documents, available from the City Council’s web site. 

5. The Core Strategy takes a “centres first” approach with the City Centre at the top of the 
hierarchy of centres where major growth in office, retail and cultural uses is to be 
focussed.  The southern half of the city centre is a particular priority for transformation 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



into an active and vibrant part of the city centre as a whole including a new park and 
good pedestrian connections. 

Recommendations

6. City Centre Plans Panel is requested to note the contents of this report. 

Page 8



1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 In reflecting the priorities and ambitions for Leeds (as set out as part of the 
Community Strategy – Vision for Leeds), the Core Strategy sets out the broad 
spatial and land use planning framework for the district (to 2028).  Central to its 
preparation has been the desire to plan for the people and places of Leeds, in the 
development of an approach, which seeks to manage growth in a sustainable 
way.  This approach seeks to balance the overall needs of a growing population in 
the delivery of an appropriate scale, distribution and phasing of development, 
taking into account local character and distinctiveness. 

1.2 In playing its part, (and linked to a range of a range of strategic initiatives and 
programmes), for Leeds to become ‘the best city in the UK’, the Core Strategy 
provides a framework to deliver a range of key priorities.  These include: 

 responding to forecasts that the population of Leeds is set to grow and the 
opportunities and challenges associated with this including, greater numbers 
of children and young people, more people 75 and over and more people from 
black, ethnic minority and mixed race backgrounds, 

 arising from the spatial pressures of population growth, the need to develop a 
longer term strategy to create more and affordable homes, whilst seeking to 
respect and enhance, the character and distinctiveness of local communities 
and settlements, 

 the promotion of urban regeneration, through the recycling of brownfield land 
and the development of land in sustainable locations, as a basis to minimise 
the impact upon greenfield and Green Belt land, 

 harnessing the ‘housing growth principles’ agreed through public consultation, 
as a basis to meet housing needs and delivery in appropriate locations through 
a phased approach, 

 planning for job creation and economic growth by promoting key economic 
sectors (including financial & business services, low carbon manufacturing, 
retail, housing and construction as identified within, the Leeds Growth 
Strategy), key strategic locations for development (including the City Centre 
and the Aire Valley – Urban Eco-Settlement/Enterprise Zone), together with a 
portfolio of opportunities for employment development & job growth and 
regeneration,

 delivering quality of place, high standards of urban design, conservation & 
construction, the protection and enhancement of the environment and ease of 
movement (through walking & cycling), in support of a sustainable, child 
friendly and healthy city,

 mitigating the consequences of climate change by managing flood risk, 
enabling sustainable design and construction and support for low carbon 
energy.

1.3 Following consideration by Executive Board, the Core Strategy has been 
approved for public consultation (pursuant to Regulation 27 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2004 as amended 

Page 9



(the LDF Regs)).  Following this stage of consultation and consideration of 
representations made, the City Council may then proceed to formal Submission of 
the document to the Secretary of State for Independent Examination. 

2 Background information 

Overview

2.1 In seeking to take forward the priorities set out as part of the Vision for Leeds, 
responding to major changes in the economy and national guidance, there is 
considerable urgency to progress the Core Strategy.  Central to this is the need to 
plan for the implications of a growing and changing population.  Based upon the 
Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA), it is anticipated that the 
population of Leeds will rise from 755,136 in 2010 to 859,583 in 2028 
(Employment led, fixed headship scenario, extrapolated to 2028).  Associated with 
this growth, are greater numbers of children and young people, more people 75 
and over and more people from black, ethnic minority and mixed race 
backgrounds.  Meeting the challenges and opportunities linked to these changes, 
is therefore a key issues for Leeds as a whole and in taking forward the Core 
Strategy.

2.2 The Core Strategy is the key spatial and land use planning document for Leeds 
which sits within a context of national planning guidance (including PPS12 and the 
emerging National Planning Policy Framework), the Localism Act (and the need to 
provide a direction and planning framework for the preparation of the Site 
Allocations DPD and Neighbourhood Plans) City Council priorities (including the 
delivery of City Priority Plans & the Leeds Growth Strategy).  Once adopted, 
substantive parts of the Core Strategy will replace the existing Development Plan 
(the Leeds UDP 2006).

2.3 Following early technical work and stakeholder engagement in 2006, wider public 
consultation on an Issues & Alternative Options document (October – December 
2007) and a further 6 week period of public consultation (October – December 
2009) on a ‘Preferred Approach’ document, a Publication draft document has 
been prepared.  This document has been developed in the light of the 
consultation work described above and also informed by supporting technical 
work and evidence base material.  This material includes the Strategic Housing 
Market Assessment (SHMA), Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 
(SHLAA), the housing growth consultation with key stakeholders (summer 2011), 
the PPG 17 Needs & Opportunities Assessment for Open Space, Sport and 
Recreation Assessment, Retail & Town Centres Study, Strategic Flood Risk 
Assessment and Employment Land Review. 

3 Main issues 

3.1 The Core Strategy has been prepared during a major period of change.  This 
includes significant and emerging changes to national and regional planning 
policy, culminating in the preparation of the draft National Planning Policy 
Framework, the impending abolition of Regional Spatial Strategies and the 
introduction of the Localism Act.  These changes have been against a background 
of a global economic downturn and restructuring, a reduction in public funding and 
national (regional and local) priorities to stimulate economic recovery and growth.  
Within this context, it is important that the Core Strategy has regard to these 
circumstances in the short term but seeks to be ambitious in the longer term (the 

Page 10



plan period and beyond) to plan for places, communities and infrastructure, in 
aspiring to be the ‘best city in the UK’.  The performance against these objectives 
will need to be monitored, to ensure that the plan remains ‘fit for purpose’.  In 
seeking to meet these objectives, the document is subdivided into two key policy 
sections the Spatial Development Strategy (supported by the Key Diagram) and 
Strategic Themes & Policies.  The main issues, arising from these sections are 
summarised below. 

Place Making

3.2 A fundamental strand of the Core Strategy is the importance of the character and 
distinctiveness of Leeds, as a context for securing opportunities for regeneration 
and longer term growth.  Particular characteristics of Leeds MD, are the extensive 
areas of greenspace and open land surrounding and linking through urban areas 
via green corridor’s and river valleys.  Leeds is distinctive also, as a consequence 
of the wide collection of individual towns and villages across the District, in 
addition to the main urban area (which also includes the city centre).  Leeds is 
therefore unlike many other cities and it is important therefore, that an appropriate 
balance is struck between the needs of economic and housing growth, quality of 
life and in maintaining and enhancing this special character.  Within this context, 
the publication draft Core Strategy provides a policy framework to facilitate and 
enable, the delivery of development proposals in a sustainable manner, as a basis 
for ‘Place making’.  Consequently, emphasis is given to Regeneration Priority 
Programme Areas (Spatial Policy 4), identifying and supporting the role of the 
places and settlements across the District, a ‘centres’ based approach to the need 
to enhance the role of the City Centre, Town and Local Centres, as a basis to 
provide the range of services required by the community in accessible and 
sustainable locations (Spatial Policies 2 and 3).  Policies are also contained within 
other sections (see para. 3.5 below) regarding the importance of design and 
conservation.

Retail Development & supporting the needs of Communities

3.3 Within the context of ‘Place making’ and the focus of Spatial Policies 2 & 3 upon a 
strategy of ‘centres first’, detailed policies are also set out, to designate Town & 
Local Centres and appropriate uses within them.  Policies P1, P2, P3, P4, P5 and 
P6, set out the approach in planning for shopping development (including the 
creation of new centres, in appropriate circumstances, linked to regeneration and 
longer term opportunities for growth).  Integral to this overall approach, is the 
desire to safeguard, enhance and develop the role of Leeds City Centre as the 
primary destination for major retail, commercial, leisure and cultural development.  
This also recognises its key role at the heart of the strategic transport hub 
(including Leeds City station and interchange facilities).  Within this context, it is 
critically important to ensure that major investment opportunities (including major 
retail development at Eastgate) within the City Centre, are secured as a priority. 

3.4 In supporting the needs of communities (including schools) across Leeds, the 
Core Strategy also places emphasis upon the provision of Community Facilities 
and Services (Policy P8).  In complementing the overall strategic approach to the 
need to respect local character and distinctiveness, policies for Design, 
Conservation and Landscape are also set out, to ensure that development 
proposals are appropriate. 

Page 11



Local Distinctiveness, Sustainability & environmental quality

3.5 Population increase, climate change and the global economy are all huge 
challenges facing Leeds.  In seeking to meet these challenges and the benefits of 
longer term economic prosperity, environmental quality, local identity and 
distinctiveness, the Core Strategy sets out the spatial planning framework for the 
District.  Fundamental to this approach, is the need to plan for the homes and jobs 
the city needs in a sustainable way, in balancing the overall, scale, location, 
distribution and phasing of development.  Consequently, emphasis is made 
throughout the publication document to the need to deliver sustainable forms of 
development and policy outcomes, whilst protecting and enhancing environmental 
quality.  This should be achieved by respecting local distinctiveness, for example 
through a focus of development upon the role of settlements and Town & Local 
Centres (Spatial Policies 1 & 2), the identification of strategic Green Infrastructure 
(Spatial Policy 13) and detailed policies for Conservation, Sustainable Design and 
Construction (Policies P9, P10 & EN2). 

 Planning for Economic growth & prosperity

3.6 The Leeds Growth Strategy focuses upon seven key employment sectors 
including Health and Medical, Low Carbon Manufacturing and Housing & 
Construction.  In helping to support and facilitate this strategy, the approach of the 
Core Strategy is to support and enable job retention, opportunities for training and 
the creation of new opportunities.  Spatial Policies 8 and 9, set out criteria in 
support of a competitive local economy, offices, industry and warehouse 
development.  Emphasis has also been given to the important strategic economic 
role of the City Centre (Spatial Policy 3) and Aire Valley Leeds (Urban Eco-
Settlement & Enterprise Zone) in providing opportunities for economic 
development (Spatial Policy 5).  In support of promoting job opportunities, detailed 
policies are also set out for General Employment Land, Office Development and 
for Safeguarding Existing Employment Land and Industrial Areas (EC1, EC2, 
EC3).

Meeting Housing Need & planning for longer term growth

3.7 Planning for housing needs and delivering housing development in appropriate 
locations, is a major opportunity and challenge for the District.  This is made 
especially difficult by the current nature of the housing market and current rates of 
housing delivery.  As noted above, it is anticipated that the population of Leeds 
will rise significantly over the plan period.  Meeting the complex demographic 
needs of the existing population, together with the implications of an ageing and 
growing population, are therefore key considerations for the Core Strategy.  
Consequently, planning for such growth is therefore integral to the overall 
approach.  The Core Strategy therefore, seeks to plan not just for a sufficient 
housing land supply in appropriate locations but also the quality, type and 
affordability of homes in meeting local needs.  It means planning for growth in 
private rented housing, including houses in multiple occupation and student 
accommodation whilst trying to ensure communities remain healthy and 
sustainable.  As emphasised throughout this report, a key dimension of this 
approach is to manage growth in a sustainable way, whilst maintaining local 
character, distinctiveness and environmental quality. 

Page 12



3.8 In developing an appropriate policy approach to these issues, the Core Strategy 
has been informed by a number of elements including the conclusions of the 
Strategic Housing Market Assessment (2011), work in relation to the Strategic 
Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA), the Scrutiny Board Inquiry into 
Housing Growth and the informal consultation and debate (summer 2011) 
regarding housing growth in Leeds (including representatives of the development 
industry, Members and community groups).  Based on this evidence and informed 
by the conclusions of the Scrutiny Board Inquiry and housing growth informal 
consultation, the Core Strategy identifies a series of housing growth principles 
(see below).

Housing Growth Principles

 Ensure housing growth is linked to the creation of sustainable neighbourhoods 
throughout the city (see SP1), 

 Set a realistic and phased target for the delivery of new homes (see SP6), 

 Ensure housing growth targets reflect local housing needs, now and in the 
future, in terms of tenure, type and size, (see SP6 and H4), 

 Enhance the distinctiveness of existing neighbourhoods and quality of life of 
local communities through the design and standard of new homes, (P10 & 
EN2),

 Facilitate the development of brownfield and regeneration sites, (see SP1, 
SP3, SP4 and SP6), 

 Agree a range of mechanisms to deliver additional affordable homes, (see 
H5),

 Work in partnership to find ways to facilitate housing growth (see Section 6 
Implementation & Delivery). 

3.9 In taking into account the above considerations and a range of factors including, 
demographic requirements, current housing market conditions, the desire to meet 
a range of housing needs, the City Council’s longstanding commitment to the 
regeneration of brownfield land and historical past performance in the successful 
delivery of windfall development, Spatial Policies (6 & 7) set out the approach to 
the Housing Land Requirement, Allocation and Distribution of Housing Land. 

3.10 As a large post industrial city and through an on going process of urban 
regeneration and renaissance, Leeds has continued to evolve in terms of its 
economic diversity and formats for housing delivery.  A major aspect of these 
changes has been the recycling of brownfield (previously developed land – PDL), 
for windfall housing and other uses.  Leeds has a long and well recorded history 
of windfall housing being delivered, which has been monitored continuously by the 
City Council since the 1980s, as a key source of land for development. 

3.11 Based upon past performance (see the Table below) and the continued urban 
renewal and regeneration of Leeds, windfall will continue to play an important role 
in housing delivery.  This is due in part to the scale of the District in respect of the 
extent of the Main Urban Area of Leeds and large collection of settlements across 
the District (including Major and Small Settlements identified as part of the 
Settlement Hierarchy – see Table 1: Identification of Settlement Types).  
Consequently, the role of windfall and the identification of a windfall allowance, is 
integral to the overall housing strategy set out in this Plan. 

Page 13



Total windfall permissions - 2000/01 to 2010/11

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

5000

2000-1 2001-2 2002-3 2003-4 2004-5 2005-6 2006-7 2007-8 2008-9 2009-10 2010-11

Year

T
o

ta
l 
d

w
e

ll
in

g
 u

n
it

s

Greenfield

Brownfield

3.12 Within this overall context, Spatial Policy 6 sets out a housing requirement of 
70,000 dwellings (net) over the plan period.  In recognition of the conditions of the
current housing market, it is proposed that this is phased over two periods, 3,660
p.a. (2012/13 – 2016/17:18,300 dwellings) and 4,700 p.a (2017/18 – 2028: 51,700 
dwellings).  In meeting this requirement (and based upon past performance) a 
‘windfall’ allowance for has been made for 500 dwellings p.a on small and 
unidentified sites.  The 66,000 units remaining (following the discounting of the 
windfall allowance), are comprised of current, undelivered allocations (7,500 
units), extant planning permissions (20,000 units) and other additional sites
(including infill development within existing urban areas and suitable urban
extensions) deemed appropriate for housing delivery, against the criteria set out in 
Spatial Policy 6.  This will entail the need to use Protected Areas of Search (PAS)
sites and to carry out a selective review of the Green Belt. 

SPATIAL POLICY 6: - THE HOUSING REQUIREMENT AND ALLOCATION OF
HOUSING LAND

70,000 (net) new dwellings net between 2012 and 2028 will be accommodated at a rate
of:

3,660 per annum from 2012/13 to the end of 2016/17 (18,300) 

4,700 per annum from 2017/18 (51,700) 
Delivery of 500 dwellings per annum (8,000 over the plan period) is anticipated on small 
and unidentified sites.

Guided by the Settlement Hierarchy, the Council will identify 66,000 dwellings gross
(62,000 net) to achieve the distribution in tables H2 and H3 in SP7 using the following
considerations:
(i) Sustainable locations (which meet standards of public transport accessibility -see

the Well Connected City chapter), supported by existing or access to new local 
facilities and services, 

(ii) Preference for brownfield and regeneration sites,
(iii) The least impact on Green Belt purposes, 
(iv) Opportunities to enhance the distinctiveness of existing neighbourhoods and quality

of life of local communities through the design and standard of new homes, 

Page 14



(v) The need for realistic lead-in-times and build-out-rates for housing construction, 
(vi) The least negative and most positive impacts on green infrastructure, green 

corridors, green space and nature conservation, 
(vii)Generally avoiding or mitigating areas of flood risk.

3.13 In reflecting the overall strategy approach of the Core Strategy and as a basis to 
provide a framework for the future Site Allocations DPD and the preparation of 
Neighbourhood Plans, Spatial Policy 7, sets out tables indicating the overall 
magnitude and distribution of housing land by Settlement Hierarchy and by 
Housing Market Characteristic Area (see below). 

Spatial Policy 7 – Table 3

Housing Market Characteristic 
Area

Number Percentage 

Aireborough 2,300 3%

City Centre 10,200 15.5%

East Leeds 11,400 17%

Inner Area 10,000 15%

North Leeds 6,000 9%

Outer North East 5,000 8%

Outer North West 2,000 3%

Outer South 2,600 4%

Outer South East 4,600 7%

Outer South West 7,200 11%

Outer West 4,700 7%

Total 66,000 100% 

3.14 In seeking to meet the complex housing needs of a growing population and as a 
basis for a qualitative approach to housing delivery, a series of detailed policies 
are also set out to cover a range of housing issues.  These include the Managed 
Release of Sites (H1), Housing Density (H3), Housing Mix (H4), criteria for the 
allocation of Gypsy and Traveller Sites (H7) and Housing for Independent Living 
(H8).  These policies underpin the overall strategic approach and a basis to 
consider housing need issues at a local level. 

3.15 Current housing market conditions, wider economic uncertainties and the need to 
plan for the necessary infrastructure and facilities to support growth are major 
issues for the delivery of the Core Strategy.  Within this context a draft 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan has been prepared (see Background documents) as a 
basis for on going dialogue to securing infrastructure improvements and longer 
term requirements to support growth.  Housing delivery and output, will therefore 
need to be closely monitored against the above requirements (and a monitoring 
framework is therefore being developed as part of the Core Strategy).  
Notwithstanding these difficulties however, in seeking to meet the housing needs 
and requirements as set out over the plan period, the delivery of housing growth 
will result in the need for a selective Green Belt review (as a basis to identify sites 
for future housing/employment development as necessary and also Protected 
Areas of Search for future development beyond the plan period).  Within this 
context, Spatial Policy 10 sets out the overall approach.  It needs to be 
emphasised however that the precise extent and detailed boundaries will need to 
be identified through the Site Allocations DPD process, as a basis to deliver the 

Page 15



housing growth principles and location of development criteria identified as part of 
the Core Strategy. 

Regeneration Priority Areas

3.16 In meeting local needs, including opportunities for homes and jobs, the Core 
Strategy reflects the City Council’s long standing priorities for major urban 
regeneration.  Spatial Policy 4 therefore identifies East Leeds, Aire Valley Leeds, 
the Leeds Bradford Corridor (incorporating the West Leeds Gateway) and South 
Leeds, as Regeneration Priority Programme Areas.  In seeking to meet local 
aspirations within these areas and to plan for the effective use of land, the Core 
Strategy provides a framework to facilitate housing renewal and provision and 
local environmental improvements (improvements to greenspace quality through 
suitable remodelling) within such areas.  Within this overall context, as noted in 
para. 3.6 above, Spatial Policy 5 sets out a strategic policy for Aire Valley Leeds, 
in underpinning the significance of this area to the District’s growth aspirations. 

 A Well Connected City (Transportation & Accessibility)

3.17 Planning for Transport Infrastructure and Investment priorities, is a key priority for 
the Core Strategy.  Within this context, the Plan reflects District wide priorities 
incorporated as part of the Local Transport Plan and ongoing work at a City 
Region level.  Consequently, Core Strategy Spatial Policy 11, provides an 
overarching framework to help direct and bid for infrastructure provision to support 
the city’s priorities.  These include enhancements to Leeds City Station, 
opportunities to create new rail stations and the delivery of Park and Ride 
facilities.  In recognising the important strategic and economic role of the Airport, 
Spatial Policy 12, sets out an approach to support managed growth, linked to the 
provision of infrastructure improvements and the consideration of related 
environmental issues.  In support of this strategic approach, Policies T1 and T2 
provide a basis to consider Transport Management and Accessibility requirements 
associated with development proposals. 

Managing Environmental Resources

3.18 Leeds has a reputation for innovation, effective environmental management and a 
commitment to mitigating the consequences of climate change.  In taking these 
commitments forward and in contributing to the environmental sustainability of the 
District, the Core Strategy sets out a broad policy framework to cover the 
Management of Environmental Resources.  The desire to help ‘future proof’ the 
city in respect of climate change (including mitigation) and planning for a low 
carbon economy (to support job growth as well as the protection and 
enhancement of the environment) are integral to this approach.  Detail Policies 
are therefore provided to protect and enhance the ‘green environment’, including 
Green Infrastructure (Spatial Policy 13 and G1, Increasing Tree Cover (G2), 
Greenspace provision (G3, G4, G5 & G6), Biodiversity (G7 & G8) and planning for 
Energy and Natural Resources, including, Carbon Reduction & Low Carbon 
Energy (EN1 & EN3), Sustainable Design & Construction (EN2) and Managing 
Flood Risk (EN5).  Policies are also included for Waste Management and 
Minerals (EN6 & EN7), in providing a Core Strategy context for related and 
expanded policies in the Natural Resources and Waste DPD. 

Page 16



City Centre

3.19 The Core Strategy has specific objectives and policy for the city centre, but it 
subject of a number of city-wide policy areas addressed above.  For example, the 
city centre will be planned to accommodate an appropriate share of economic 
growth (centres first focus for office and retail development) and housing growth 
(10,200 dwellings or 15.5% of the total).  The city centre is also recognised as 
being at the heart of the transport hub where key infrastructure improvements are 
needed.

3.20 To support the continued vitality, economic development and distinctiveness of 
the city centre, the core strategy objectives are: 

 To accommodate first and foremost the needs of offices, shops, hotels, 
institutions and leisure and entertainment uses, accepting that there is a place 
for residential and supporting facilities such as parks, convenience stores, 
health centres, nurseries and schools 

 To give priority to the development of land opportunities in the southern half of 
the City Centre 

 To strengthen the vibrancy, distinctive character and cultural appeal of the 
City Centre 

 To make the City Centre accessible to all, including improved pedestrian and 
cycle links to adjoining neighbourhoods 

3.21 Strategic policy SP2 recognises the city centre at the top of the hierarchy of 
centres in Leeds.  Strategic policy SP3 sets out the role of the city centre: 

The importance of the City Centre as an economic driver for the District and 
City Region will be maintained and enhanced by: 

(i) Promoting the City Centre’s role as the regional capital for major new retail, 
leisure, hotel, culture and office development; 

(ii) Making the City Centre the main focus for office development in the District 
(focussed upon the West End, South Bank & Holbeck Urban Village); 

(iii) Valuing the contributions to the life, vitality and economy of the City Centre 
made by the Universities, Leeds General Infirmary, Major Museums and 
Arena

(iv) Comprehensively planning the redevelopment and re-use of vacant and 
under-used sites for mixed use development and new areas of public space 
(including a major City Centre Park in the South Bank Area);

(v) Improving public transport links between the City Centre and the rest of the 
District, including Leeds Bradford International Airport; 

Page 17



                                           

(vi) Managing flood risk issues comprehensively through supporting the 
construction of the Leeds Flood Alleviation Scheme and use of other flood 
mitigation measures;

(vii) Enhancing streets and creating a network of open and green spaces to 
make the City Centre more attractive and easier for people to use and in 
consolidating and enhancing sense of place;

(viii) Improving connections between the City Centre and adjoining 
neighbourhoods;

(ix) Support the role of Leeds City Station, enhancing Leeds’ role as a regional 
transport hub and supporting the potential for the integration of high speed 
rail;

(x) Expanding city living with a broader housing mix (including family housing). 

3.22 Further city centre policies – CC1, CC2 and CC31 provide guidance on how 
development will be managed: 

 to achieve office development in those city centre locations with the best 
public transport accessibility 

 to maintain the vitality of the shopping quarter 

 to transform the southern half of the city centre with major office and 
residential development including a major park 

 to provide new and enhance existing pedestrian connections particularly to 
adjoining neighbourhoods 

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 Consistent with the City Council’s adopted Statement of Community Involvement 
(SCI), the Core Strategy (see paragraph 2.5 above) has been subject to several 
formal and informal phases of public consultation and engagement.  Following 
consideration by Executive Board of the Publication document, a further formal 6 
week period of public consultation (consistent with the LDF Regulations), is being 
undertaken.  Following consideration of any representations made, the next stage 
will be the formal submission of the Core Strategy to the Secretary of State for 
Independent Examination, prior to Adoption.  The decision to submit the Core 
Strategy to examination and subsequently to adopt the document are decisions 
reserved to full Council. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 Due regard has been given to Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and Integration issues 
in the formulation of the Core Strategy. .This has included meeting the 
requirements of the Strategic Environmental Assessment Directive, which has 
meant that the Core Strategy has been subject to the preparation of a 

1
 Policies CC1, CC2 and CC3 are set out in full in Appendix 1 

Page 18



Sustainability Appraisal.  The purpose of this Appraisal is to assess (and where 
appropriate strengthen) the document’s policies, in relation to a series of social, 
environmental and economic objectives.  As part of this process, issues of 
Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and Integration, are embedded as part of the 
Appraisal’s objectives.  In complementing the preparation of the Sustainability 
Appraisal, a Health Impact Assessment exercise, has also been undertaken (See 
Health Topic Paper – Background documents) in the preparation of the emerging 
Core Strategy Publication document, the conclusions of which have also been 
embedded within the document. 

4.2.2 Given this approach, considerations of equality of opportunity and good relations 
have been integrated into the formulation of the Core Strategy and an assessment 
of the impact of the policies on the advancement of equality and good relations 
has been carried out.  This is evidenced in the comprehensive Equality Impact 
Assessment Screening document, which is available as a Background paper. 

4.2.3 The EIA Screening document describes the overall scope of the Core Strategy 
and the many stages of public consultation which have been completed to date.  
The planning and delivery of this consultation has been consistent with the City 
Council’s adopted LDF Statement of Community Involvement.  The consultation 
process, within available resources, has been extensive and has sought to 
engage with a wide range of communities and groups across the District, 
including, people of all ages, people with disabilities, gender and black, ethnic 
minority groups.  In the preparation of the Core Strategy, a fundamental 
consideration has been to recognise that the population of Leeds is growing, 
resulting in demographic changes across the District and in spatial pressures in 
particular areas.  Consequently, the Plan seeks to provide a strategic planning 
framework to address these issues, which in turn is to be monitored for 
effectiveness.  The implications of Equality and Diversity, Cohesion and 
Integration, will again be considered in the production of the Site Allocations DPD 
which will take forward the policy requirements of the Core Strategy.

4.2.4 Within the EIA Screening document examples of the community groups contacted 
at each stage of consultation have been provided, together with the range of 
issues highlighted for discussion. 

4.2.5 In providing an overall analysis and review of the Core Strategy in relation to 
equality issues, the EIA Screening document provides a summary of the impact of 
individual policy areas.  These include Transport, Retail, Housing, the City Centre, 
Employment, Environmental Resources and Green Infrastructure.  Consistent with 
the overall objectives of the Core Strategy, these policy areas aim to promote 
equality, respect diversity and seek to improve cohesion and integration.  The 
conclusions highlighted in the EIA Screening, are that in some policy areas the 
Core Strategy is neutral in its effects upon these issues (such as gender 
discrimination in relation to Transport policy) but in the majority of cases, the Core 
Strategy has a positive effect (for example seeking to meet a range of housing 
needs and the provision of affordable housing).  In addition the identification of 
Regeneration Priority Programme Areas and the provisions of proposed 
employment Policies, were regarded as having a positive effect in terms of their 
impact upon all ages, people with disabilities, gender and black, ethnic minority. 

Page 19



4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 As highlighted in this report, the Core Strategy, plays a key strategic role in taking 
forward the spatial and land use elements of the Vision for Leeds and the 
aspiration to the ‘the best city in the UK’.  Related to this overarching approach 
and in meeting a host of social, environmental and economic objectives, where 
relevant the Core Strategy also seeks to support and advance the implementation 
of a range of other key City Council and wider partnership documents.  These 
include the Leeds Growth Strategy, the City Priority Plan, the Council Business 
Plan and the desire to be a ‘child friendly city’. 

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 The preparation of statutory Development Planning documents is an essential but 
a very resource intensive process.  This is due to the time and cost of document 
preparation (relating to public consultation and engagement), the preparation and 
monitoring of an extensive evidence base, legal advice and Independent 
Examination.

4.4.2 These challenges are compounded currently by the financial constraints upon the 
public sector and reduced staffing levels, concurrent with new technical and 
planning policy pressures arising from new legislation (including the Community 
Infrastructure Levy and Localism Act). There are considerable demands therefore 
in taking forward the Core Strategy and related work, including the preparation of 
the Site Allocations DPD, which is due to quickly follow on. 

4.4.3 A key component of the Core Strategy document itself, relates to the provision of 
infrastructure.  National guidance (PPS12), sets out requirements for the 
preparation of Infrastructure Delivery Plans (IDP) to support the phased 
implementation of Core Strategy priorities.  This guidance was written before the 
current economic slow down and constraints upon public sector finance.  Whilst 
opportunities are being vigorously pursued to secure infrastructure funding, there 
are uncertainties regarding the level and timing of resources.  Work is also 
ongoing within the City Council to work up in more detail the approach to the 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 

4.4.4 Notwithstanding these challenges and difficulties, a draft IDP has been prepared 
in support of the Core Strategy.  This provides a framework to identify 
infrastructure requirements and an on going basis to engage with infrastructure 
providers, communities and developers, to help meet requirements. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 The DPD is being prepared within the context of the LDF Regulations and 
statutory requirements.  The DPD is a Budgetary and Policy Framework 
document and as such this report is exempt from call-in by Scrutiny. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 As emphasised in this report, there is considerable urgency to take the Core 
Strategy forward.  The absence of such an up to date strategy would leave a 
vacuum in strategic and land use planning in being able to respond to the 
priorities set out in the Vision for Leeds and a range of other key documents 
(including the emerging Site Allocations DPD and Neighbourhood Plans). 

Page 20



4.6.2 The preparation of the Core Strategy document has been a complex process and 
the Publication stage is necessary prior to formal submission and Independent 
Examination.  Given the range of issues covered, the City Council will need to 
continue to take appropriate advice, in order to respond to issues which may arise 
and in order to keep the momentum behind the process. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 The Core Strategy is at a critical stage in its production and as detailed in this 
report, needs to be taken forward as a matter of urgency.  In aspiring to be the 
‘best city in the UK’, the Core Strategy takes forward the spatial and land use 
aspects of this ambition, as part of an overall strategy.  As a basis to address 
these priorities and in order to provide a strategic framework for the preparation of 
the Site Allocations DPD and Neighbourhood Plans. 

5.2 Central to this approach, is the desire to plan for the homes and jobs the District 
needs in a sustainable manner.  Consequently, integral to the strategy is the need 
to respect local character, distinctiveness and environmental management 
requirements

6 Recommendations 

i) City Centre Plans Panel is requested to note the contents of this report. 

7 Consultation and background material 

7.1 The “Publication” draft of the Core Strategy represents a formal stage of 
consultation through which comments can help refine the plan prior to 
examination by a planning inspector.  As such comments must be made on the 
representation form (Appendix 2); the form is designed to help the planning 
inspector to determine whether the plan is “sound”.  There are 3 tests of 
soundness: i) justified by evidence ii) effective and iii) consistent with national 
policy.

7.2 The following consultation and background material is available on the City 
Council’s web site, together with a representations form.  There are also links 
from this web page to supporting technical material which has been used to 
inform the preparation of the Core Strategy.  These including the Strategic 
Housing Market Assessment, Employment Land Review and Leeds Needs & 
Opportunities Assessment for Open Space, Sport and Recreation Assessment. 

o Core Strategy Publication Draft 
o Key Diagram 
o Sustainability Appraisal 
o Draft Infrastructure Delivery Plan 
o Draft Core Strategy Monitoring Framework 
o Equality Impact Assessment Screening 
o Habitats Regulations Assessment Screening 
o Health Topic Paper 

Page 21



Appendix 1: Core Strategy City Centre Policies 

POLICY CC1:  CITY CENTRE DEVELOPMENT

The City Centre will be planned to accommodate at least the following: 

(i) 667655,000 sqm of office floorspace. 

(ii) 31,000 sqm of net additional retail space (comparison), following 
completion of the Trinity and Eastgate schemes and subject to need being 
confirmed in a further retail study. 

(iii) 10,200 dwellings. 

(iv) Supporting services and open spaces. 

This will be achieved through implementation of outstanding permissions, 
decision making on planning applications, master-planning, and 
identification of appropriate sites and mixed use allocations through LDF 
allocations documents, according to the following criteria:  

a) Favouring locations with the best public transport accessibility for 
large scale offices,

b) Mixed office/residential schemes to site residential on upper floors and 
away from major roads. 

c) Hospital, university, college, and cultural facilities to be retained in the 
City Centre. 

d) Comparison retail space will only be permitted outside of the Prime 
Shopping Quarter when it cannot be accommodated within the Prime 
Shopping Quarter, or in the case of bulky goods retailing space cannot be 
accommodated also in areas designated for bulky goods retailing. 

e) Considering proposals for convenience retailing and convenience 
facilities (such as dry cleaners, off-licenses, small branch banks, cafés, and 
pubs) as follows: 

i) below 200 sqm (gross) acceptable anywhere within the city centre, 

ii) 200 – 372 sqm (gross) sequential test to include the Prime Shopping 
Quarter and any designated parades if they fall within 300m walking 
distance,

iii) 372 – 1,499 sqm (gross) sequential test to include the Prime 
Shopping Quarter, all designated parades and those centres identified 
in Policy P1 that fall within a 5 minute inbound off-peak drive time, 

iv) 1,500 sqm and above sequential test as per iii) above plus an impact 
assessment on the Prime Shopping Quarter and parades and centres 
identified in iii) above, 

Page 22



v) aggregating floorspace together for the purposes of the above 
thresholds if more than one unit is proposed,  

such that where a realistic alternative opportunity exists in-centre in the 
first instance, or edge of centre in the second, or where the impact on the 
viability and vitality of the Prime Shopping Quarter, a centre or designated 
parade would be harmful, proposals will be resisted. 

f) A concentration of shops with ground floor frontages should be 
maintained in the Prime Shopping Quarter for reasons of vitality.  Proposals 
for non-retail use should not result in the proportion of retail frontage 
length falling below 80% in Primary Frontages or below 50% in Secondary 
Frontages.  Proposals for uses outside of the “A” class will not be 
permitted within designated ground floor frontages. 

POLICY CC2:  CITY CENTRE SOUTH

The north and south halves of Leeds City Centre are to be more effectively 
integrated and better connected. 

The areas of development opportunity south of the river will be prioritised 
for town centre uses (see list in Policy P2), particularly large scale office 
development, delivery of a new park, residential, cultural and leisure uses, 
and a strong pedestrian corridor to connect Crown Point Retail Park with 
the Prime Shopping Quarter and east/west links to Clarence Dock and the 
remainder of the lower Aire Valley.  Within this priority, there is substantial 
opportunity for residential development.  Large scale edge of centre 
development which would prejudice the achievement of this priority will be 
resisted.  The suitability of this area for provision of comparison retail 
floorspace to be released for development will be considered (subject to the 
need being confirmed in a further retail study) only after the Eastgate retail 
development has completed and any subsequent excess retail vacancy in 
the remaining Prime Shopping Quarter has been taken up. 

POLICY CC3:  IMPROVING CONNECTIVITY BETWEEN THE CITY CENTRE &
NEIGHBOURING COMMUNITIES

Development at appropriate locations is required to help provide and 
improve routes connecting the City Centre with adjoining neighbourhoods 
and improve connections within the City Centre in order to make walking 
and cycling easier, safer and more attractive. 

Page 23



Appendix 2: Core Strategy Response Form 

Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Originator: Paul Kendall

Tel: 2478196

Report of the Chief Planning Officer

PLANS PANEL CITY CENTRE

Date:  8 MARCH 2012

Subject: PRE-APPLICATION PRESENTATION  – FORMATION OF STUDENT FLATS
(501 BEDS IN 77 CLUSTERS) AT 27 BURLEY ROAD, WOODHOUSE 
(PREAPP/11/00577).

Specific Implications For: 

Equality and Diversity 

Community Cohesion 

Narrowing the Gap

Electoral Wards Affected: 
City and Hunslet

 Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

No

RECOMMENDATION: This report is brought to Panel for information.  The developer
will be asked to present the emerging scheme to allow Members to consider and 
comment on the proposals.

1.0 INTRODUCTION: 

Members will receive a presentation from the developer setting out their proposal to 
construct a new complex of buildings on the site of the former YTV television studio 
at 27 Burley Rd to create student accommodation. The building has been vacant 
since the decision of YTV to centralize its Emmerdale production unit to it’s main site 
on Kirkstall Rd. Officers have received a pre-application enquiry regarding this site 
the details of which are set out below. Members will be asked to comment on the 
proposal to assist officers in further pre-application discussions.

2.0 SITE AND SURROUNDINGS:

The site currently contains a single building which consists of a part1/part3 storey 
office element fronting Burley Rd access road (this runs parallel to Burley Rd to the 
south of the L.C.C. surface car park) and a large single storey shed behind. This
sits centrally within a site of approximately 100m x 80m. Around the periphery of the 
site is an apron of hard standing which enables vehicles to access the entire 
perimeter of the building. To the east is the Opal 2 student residential building which 
itself is adjacent the Opal 1 scheme. To the south are the rears of the commercial

Agenda Item 8

Page 27



properties which front the northern side of Kirkstall Rd and to the west are further 
low rise commercial units. Immediately in front of the building to the north is the 
surfaced LCC pay and display car park which means that the buildings are set well 
back from the main Burley Road carriageway. 

3.0 POLICY: 

The site is located outside the City Centre boundary as set out in the statutory 
Unitary Development Plan Review (UDPR) and therefore justification for the loss of 
employment land has to be made against a number of criteria under Employment 
Policy E7. Where the case for the loss of employment land can be made, residential 
development is the favoured land use.

UDPR policy H15A states that the City Council will work with the universities and 
accommodation providers to promote student housing where it meets the following 
criteria:

 Good connections by public transport to the universities or be close enough 
to enable easy travel by foot or cycle 

 Attractive to students to live and be of sufficient scale to form a viable student 
community either in themselves or in association with other developments 

 Be well integrated in to the surrounding area in terms of scale character and 
associated services and facilities 

 Contribute directly to the regeneration of the surrounding area, preferably as 
part of comprehensive planning proposals 

 Not unacceptably affect the quality, quantity or variety of the local housing 
stock

This site is also covered by advice contained within the non-statutory Kirkstall Road 
Renaissance Area Planning Framework where it is included within the ‘Media 
Village‘ area. This is characterized as ‘an employment area dominated by media’ 
where employment uses will be favoured. However it is considered no longer 
necessary or appropriate to apply the requirement for media-related uses given the 
fact that YTV has reduced its presence and there are no other significant media 
operators in the area. This document also identifies that the neighbouring character 
area to the east (‘City Heights’) contains a number of ‘high density cluster flats 
including purpose built student accommodation and therefore the remaining 
potential development sites should only be developed for a non-residential purpose’. 
The current proposal site is outside this character area and therefore not subject to 
this restriction. 

The Core Strategy, which is currently at consultation draft stage, states that 
development proposals for purpose built student accommodation will be controlled: 

 To help extend the supply of student accommodation taking pressure off the 
need for private housing to be used, 

 To avoid the loss of existing housing suitable for family occupation, 

 To avoid excessive concentrations of student accommodation (in a single 
development or in combination with existing accommodation) which would 
undermine the balance and wellbeing of communities, 

 To avoid locations which are not easily accessible to the Universities by foot 
or public transport or which would generate excessive footfall through quiet 
residential areas. 

4.0         HISTORY OF NEGOTIATIONS 

Page 28



The applicant  approached officers late in 2011 and held an introductory meeting. 
Since then a further meeting has been held to discuss massing, the types of 
elevational treatment which may be appropriate and highways matters. Local 
residents have previously raised objections to student schemes further to the east 
and therefore the applicant held a public drop-in session at the Swarthmore Centre 
in Woodhouse Sq (16th Feb 2012) to inform local residents of the proposal and 
receive any representations. At the time of writing this report officers had not seen 
the results of this exercise, however, the applicant will be asked to provide this as 
part of their presentation. 

5.0         PROPOSAL 

It is proposed to create 501 student bed spaces in 77 cluster flats. The flats are 
provided in a mix of unit sizes ranging from four to seven bedrooms. These are 
located within 3 buildings which sit clear of the boundaries to allow sufficient 
distance to the neighbouring buildings to protect their amenity and allow visual 
permeability and roughly form a ‘figure 8’ layout.  This creates two landscaped 
courtyards which would each have internal dimensions of approx 21m x 30m 
(630sqm). As a comparator, the neighbouring Opal 2 building has a single courtyard 
of 12m x 40m (480sqm) surrounded by buildings of 6-10 storeys, Opal 1’s central 
space is irregular with sides of 19m,32m,38m and 39m (1,000sqm) with building 
heights of 10-13 storeys and the new student scheme at Charles Morris Halls is 
again irregular in plan and is 25m widening to 38m over an average length of 40m 
(1,280sqm) having one open side with the buildings being 5+1 and 6+1 storeys.

The building heights are proposed to be 6 storeys at the eastern end adjacent Opal 
2, stepping down to 5 and then 4 storeys at the western end. The intention is for this
to act as a transition from the taller buildings closer to the city centre down to the 
lower commercial units to the west. The central block which divides the two 
courtyard spaces would be 5 storeys including a ground floor undercroft containing 
open sided cycle parking. A gym with nurse consultation room, a residents only 
coffee bar and restaurant fronting Burley Rd (but with no direct access to the street) 
and a laundry, will all be provided on site and be contained within a secure 
environment.

Vehicular access to the site would be from the Burley Rd access road at the north-
western corner leading to a hard surfaced area used to access the motorcycle 
(approx 15 spaces) and cycle storage areas (approx 200 spaces). It is also intended 
that this area be used at times when students are arriving and leaving at either end 
of term for loading and unloading. There would be no other vehicle parking 
proposed on the site other than the ability to provide disabled parking bays. Refuse 
collections and other servicing would take place from a lay-by which it is proposed 
to be located on the Burley Rd access road.

6.0 ISSUES 
Members are asked to consider the following matters: 

i. Is the principle of the redevelopment of this site for student 
accommodation acceptable having particular regard to the criteria 
identified in UDPR policy 15A set out above?

ii. Is the stepped nature of the design acceptable and does it relate well 
to the surrounding buildings?

iii. Is the plan layout of the complex acceptable particularly the size of 
the courtyards? 

Page 29



iv. Is the lack of car parking and use of the side area for student 
arrivals/departures at the start and end of each term acceptable?

v. Are the motorcycle/cycle parking and servicing arrangements 
acceptable?

Page 30



CITY CENTRE PLANS PANEL
© Crown copyright and database rights 2011 Ordnance Survey 100019567 °SCALE : 1/1500

PREAPP/11/00577

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Originator: Phil Ward and 
  Franklin Riley

Tel: 247 8146 and 247 8138

Report of the Chief Planning Officer

PLANS PANEL CITY CENTRE

Date: 8th March 2012 

Subject: First White Cloth Hall Subject: First White Cloth Hall 
  
  

  
  

Specific Implications For: 

Equality and Diversity 

Community Cohesion 

Narrowing the Gap

Electoral Wards Affected: 

City & Holbeck

 Ward Members consulted
(refer to Executive Board report)
Report, Appendix 1) 

RECOMMENDATION:RECOMMENDATION:

  

City Centre Plans Panel is asked to note the contents of this report, in particular that work is 

progressing towards repairing the First White Cloth Hall.  A further report will be brought to Panel in 

July/August 2012.

City Centre Plans Panel is asked to note the contents of this report, in particular that work is 

progressing towards repairing the First White Cloth Hall.  A further report will be brought to Panel in 

July/August 2012.

1.0 Purpose of this report 

1.1 To inform City Centre Plans Panel of progress in restoring the First White Cloth Hall 

(FWCH).  It follows the update that was given in November 2011.

2.0 Background

2.1 In 2010 the City Council developed and submitted a Stage 1 bid to the Heritage 
Lottery Fund (HLF) to support the physical regeneration of Lower Kirkgate.  A Stage 
1 pass was granted by the HLF in May 2010.  As a result the HLF awarded £1.005m
to Leeds, a sum which has to be matched by £668k in LCC funding.  In September 
2011 a revised Stage 1 bid seeking an additional £500k to support the restoration of 
the FWCH was submitted to the HLF who have now confirmed that they are minded 
to approve the additional funding subject to a successful Stage 2 bid.

2.2 To complement the bid development process, a number of parallel studies have 
been carried out including an options appraisal looking at a range of options for 
delivering the FWCH should the commercial solution outlined in the masterplan not 

Agenda Item 9

Page 33



be tenable. There is also a need to look at the wider context, in particular the lack of 
physical and perceptual linkages between Kirkgate and the rest of the City Centre 
that have gradually choked off investment to Leeds’ First Street. 

3.0 FWCH Proposals 

3.1 The FWCH appraisal has identified a full restoration of the FWCH with a rebuilt west 
wing in keeping with what remains of the east and south wings. In this option the 
19th century gable of the extant east wing would be retained (mirrored on the rebuilt 
west wing), the re-opened courtyard would see the archway details restored and the 
south elevation of the south wing facing the car park (mostly 19th century fabric 
combined with two and half bays of the 1711 cloth hall) would be repaired and 
restored.  Recent discussions with the Civic Trust and English Heritage suggest they 
are comfortable with this option.

3.2 However, it is also the most expensive option and all parties have acknowledged that 
in the value engineering phases some compromises may have to be made. The 
assumption is that the building would be refurbished for retail/leisure a use that 
would yield the highest rental and also require fewer interventions than alternative 
uses. Appraisals of different development options for the FWCH suggest that there is 
a  significant deficit and value engineering work is being undertaken over the next 
few weeks to attempt to address this.  The funding from the HLF combined with 
other possible grant sources will not be sufficient and the majority of the initial capital 
outlay will have to be met by borrowing and cross subsidy from the development 
gain arising from the owner’s other landholdings.  To this end the majority landowner 
has commissioned a development masterplan for the area (see map 2). The 
proposal is at an early stage at the moment but incorporates the following elements: 

a. A fully refurbished FWCH with limited servicing reflecting the potential to 
accommodate a basic retail operation similar to its initial purpose. To maximise 
the use of available internal floorspace, servicing would be external to the main 
building and a glazed roof may be installed over the courtyard to increase 
available tradable space.

b. Several new build elements comprising a building fronting onto Kirkgate to 
replace the demolished 101 Kirkgate and 103 Kirkgate (currently Hill's 
Furnishings) and a larger two-storey retail development to the SW of the 
FWCH occupying 2/3 of the site on the site of the current car park to the rear of 
the Kirkgate frontages.  This new retail block will be set off Waterloo House on 
the southern edge of the site which allows the potential for a new arcade with a 
glazed roof which will allow circulation from Crown Street through the railway 
viaduct arches to Chancellors Court.

c. A narrow ginnel has been proposed west of the FWCH to encourage 
pedestrian footfall through the site exploiting desire lines between Kirkgate 
Market, the Corn Exchange, Call Lane and the Vicar Lane bus station.  It would 
also afford glimpses of the Corn Exchange roofscape from Lower Kirkgate. 
However, whilst in townscape terms this solution would be attractive a better 
commercial solution might be to use this as part of the new build development 
at 101/103 Kirkgate and use the FWCH as the main route through the site.  It is 
also proposed to improve circulation within the site by re-opening Pine Court at 
the bottom of Kirkgate and by breaking through one of the shopfronts in the 
middle of the parade to create a new pedestrian walkway which will link into the 
arcade.

Page 34



3.3 Once the general massing of the building is agreed a development appraisal will be 
undertaken to re-assess the funding position of the primary commercial option for the 
refurbishment of the FWCH.  Alternative delivery mechanisms are also being 
explored, including the setting up of a charitable trust which would carry out the 
refurbishment and management of the FWCH.   

4.0 Training 

4.1 Training and education is central to the achievement of the THI’s aims and 
objectives.  As a consequence a budget of £50,000 has been allocated for training, 
education and learning initiatives which have been designed to primarily engage the 
residents of Richmond Hill and other nearby communities.  A training plan is being 
prepared in partnership with Construction Yorkshire and, Employment Leeds that 
seeks to: 

 To provide unemployed graduates with experience in heritage management.

 To improve the skills and knowledge of individuals employed in the local 
construction sector including contractors/subcontractors.

 To provide training for NEETS and the unemployed generally who are interested 
in developing a career in heritage construction in addition to work experience. 

 To encourage property owners and individuals to consider the use of sustainable 
products and services and to introduce energy efficient methods. 

 To increase knowledge and awareness of the heritage of the Kirkgate area and to 
promote opportunities for the understanding and the enjoyment heritage in 
Kirkgate and the surrounding area. 

5.0 Timescales 

5.1 The key stages in developing the options for delivery of the FWCH and the 

submission of the stage 2 Townscape Heritage Initiative are as follows: 

Executive Board to consider the stage 2 (proceeded by SIB)* April 2012 

Submission of stage 2 bid to HLF April 2012 

HLF decision on stage 2 June 2012 

Further report to City Centre plans Panel  July/August 2012 

Scheme Delivery Starts October 2012 

Scheme Ends October 2017 

6.0 Conclusion 

6.1 The Council is working with the owner and other funders and stakeholders, including 

the Heritage Lottery fund, to find a viable option for the restoration of the First White 

Cloth Hall.   A further progress report should be submitted to City Centre Plans Panel 

in July/August 2012 following a decision by the Heritage Lottery Fund. 

Page 35



MAP 1: location plan

First White 
Cloth Hall

MAP 2: draft masterplan 

Page 36


	Agenda
	
	6 Minutes
	7 Local  Development Framework (LDF) Core Strategy Publication Document
	8 Pre-application Presentation - Formation of student flats (501 beds in 77 clusters) at 27 Burley Road, Woodhouse (Pre-App/11/00577)
	9 First White Cloth Hall

